














The original certificate of incorporation shows that Paton Brake Service Station

was registered on 1st December 1927 and established as a partnership.






THE GARAGE THAT GREW

The brothers never strayed from what we now call "core competencies".

They were specialists who understood brakes and, as the automotive industry
evolved, they continually worked on designing and making better products,
and looking for ways of improving their manufacturing processes and service
to customers. But they never fell into the trap of trying to provide products
and services that they did not understand, no matter how tempting this must
have been in a rapidly growing industry. They also understood, as did the
generations that followed, that brakes were a safety critical product so there
could never be any compromise on the quality of their work.

Their commitment to the people who worked for them was outstanding.
Throughout the Great Depression, they refused to lay off a single employee -
a formidable feat in the 1930s when unemployment reached a staggering 33%.

The values of the Paton brothers remained embedded in the company down
the decades. During the 1950s and 60s the torch was carried by Jack Pearce
who spent all but 16 years of his entire life with the company. Under his
leadership, PBR flourished as a business that saw no limits to what it was
capable of achieving and an exciting place to work. In times of adversity such
as the oil shocks and inflationary times of the 1970s, PBR saw the problems as
opportunities and created new, lightweight products that reduced vehicle fuel
consumption and set new standards of performance. When Australian trade
barriers began to fall and manufacturing industry reform was required in the
1980s, PBR was already planning its future as a truly international business,
capable of matching it with the best in the world.

In the final decade of the 20th Century and into the new Millennium, the
entrepreneurial PBR spirit was to be seen in its expansion into Asia and North
America. Today there is a ceaseless desire to improve the way in which things
are done and innovation is a touchstone. New products and processes keep
PBR at the leading edge of world brake technologies even at a time when its
competitors are multi-billion dollar international corporations with massive

research and development and marketing budgets.

By any measure, PBR is a true Australian success story.







THE GARAGE THAT GREW

Jack Pearce, the legendary leader of PBR who joined as a 16-year-old in
1930 when the business employed six people. He spent the rest of his
working life with PBR and became a director of Repco.

ordinary wage earners. As vehicles of many makes and models grew in
popularity, they created massive demands for the steel, rubber and timber
from which they were built as well as the fuels that propelled them. The
boom times on the world’s stock markets seemed to have no limits as a new

industrial age was in full swing.

In Australia, car sales were growing at a very brisk pace but, despite local
body building and assembly plants, there was little or no support for service,
spare parts and repairs. On 1 December, two enterprising young brothers,
George and Jack Paton, saw an opportunity and formed a partnership which
they called Paton’s Brake Service Station. With one employee, they opened a
small brake repair shop in Queensberry Street, Carlton, an inner Melbourne
suburb. George had already been working in the automotive parts industry
while Jack had been a commercial traveller in Victoria and Tasmania. The
Paton family hailed from the small seaside town of Whitehaven, Cumbria in
the north-west of England. George and Jack, their brother Edward and sister
Jeanie had come to Australia in 1913 with their parents to start new lives.
All were teenagers when they arrived in Melbourne. George was 31 and Jack

was 27 when they started their new business.
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For many years, PBR sold its own brand of brake fluid which had a higher
boiling point than fluid imported from overseas. Here brake fluid is being
quality tested in the PBR laboratory.

From being merely a business that sourced parts from manufacturers, Paton’s
Brake Replacement commenced manufacturing in its own right. The Goldings
business, owned by the Patons” brother-in-law, merged with Paton’s in 1935,
bringing its rubber manufacturing expertise into the enlarged firm. Paton’s
supplied all General Motors replacement brake drums for Chevrolet and
Pontiac. Indeed, most importers and agents now relied on Paton’s for supply
of brake components. In the mid-1930s, a rivet making machine was installed
and the company’s long association with aluminium fabrication commenced
when it started manufacturing aluminium and then brass rivets. The product
range grew and included flexible fuel and oil lines, brake hoses, brake

cylinders and pistons and a locally sourced high boiling-point brake fluid.

By the end of the decade, PBR, as it became known, had survived the worst
economic period in Australia’s history. It had done more than survive, it had
continued to grow, expanding its premises in Queensberry Street to house its
new business activities. A strong spirit of entrepreneurship, innovation and

a "can do" culture pervaded the young organisation. The Paton brothers were
justifiably proud of the fact that not one worker had been laid off as a
consequence of the depression.
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The first Holden - production commenced in 1948 in Melbourne with Repco and
PBR as suppliers. Photograph published with permission from Holden Limited.

Repco traces its history back to 1922, only five years before PBR’s
commencement. Geoff Russell, a 30-year old returned soldier started the
Automotive Grinding Company in a tin shed in the inner Melbourne suburb
of Collingwood, a very short tram ride from where the Paton brothers started
their business. Russell also recognised that the automotive industry had an
immense future. While the Patons concentrated on brakes, Russell’s business

was based on reconditioning engines.

In 1924, Russell moved his business to Queensberry Street Carlton, the very
same street that would be the first home to the Paton business three years
later. Like many other automotive businesses, Russell was finding it
increasingly difficult to obtain sufficient components to keep his business
running. So, in 1926, he teamed up with a friend, Bill Ryan, who was then
working for a spare parts company and had a wide network in the industry.
The two set up a new business, Replacement Parts Pty Ltd and together they
thrived. During the 1930s, a network of spare parts stores with their own
engineering workshops was set up in regional Victoria. Despite the horrific
depression, the network of shops survived. The intense, quiet and studious
Geoff Russell and the gregarious, dashing Bill Ryan with his entrepreneurial
flair proved to be a winning combination in business.
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THE MOVE TO EAST BENTLEIGH

In 1952, plans were announced to build a large, modern plant for PBR on a
35-acre site at East Boundary Road, East Bentleigh. PBR, like many other
manufacturers of the era, found that limited factory space, crowded roads and
encroaching residential and community developments were forcing them to
move to the outer suburbs. New industrial areas began to appear in
Melbourne’s south-eastern and western suburbs. At PBR’s helm was the
legendary Jack Pearce who had joined the Paton brothers back in 1930 as a
16-year-old fresh from country Victoria. Despite the lack of formal education,
Pearce was a far-sighted business leader who was to take PBR into new fields.
The large new site at East Bentleigh that provided ample room for expansion
was just one example of how he always looked to the future. The investment
in the huge East Bentleigh site carried the imprimatur of the Chairman of
Repco, Sir John Storey, who encouraged and supported Pearce in his desire to
build PBR into a much larger and dynamic business. Pearce appointed Les Pye
to oversee the construction of the plant. Pye was a draftsman by training who
in 1952 left the engineering and manufacturing company, McPhersons to join
PBR. After the successful completion of the East Bentleigh project he remained
with PBR for the rest of his working life.

In 1954, PBR moved into its new premises in East Bentleigh.
This was the original office block.
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At the same time as the East Bentleigh site was being planned, PBR was
increasing its network of brake service stations that provided motorists with
repairs, maintenance and replacement parts. Until the early 1950s, the
Queensberry Street site was a combination of manufacturing, repair and
service activities. At the behest of Jack Pearce, a new site in nearby Swanston
Street was purchased and became a dedicated vehicle service centre under the
management of Graham Peacock, a young mechanic who had joined PBR in
1948. Over the coming years, new centres were opened to accommodate the
growing legion of customers and a formidable network commenced under
Peacock’s management. Ultimately, there were 70 branches throughout
Australia and New Zealand employing 700 people and generating $60

million in sales.

The service stations were a distinctly different part of the business from the
manufacturing activities but the two streams worked very closely and
together significant benefits were gained from these close ties. Over many
years, the service stations provided excellent feedback to the manufacturing
operations about the problems encountered in the field leading to better
product design and development.

RETURN OF THE BOOM TIMES

The 1950s were a decade of spectacular growth in most parts of Australia.
The post-war shortages were by now a distant memory and with the growth
came prosperity for most Australians. The returning service men and women
had started their families and, at the same time, tens of thousands of migrants
poured in from post-war Europe to start new lives. The suburban sprawl
became a feature of every city as home ownership became the goal of

almost every family.

Living in the suburbs in their new homes, Australians also discovered that

car ownership was highly desirable and they bought cars as never before.

The market was dominated by the immensely popular Holden but the
emergence of other vehicle manufacturers including Ford and Volkswagen
created additional customers for the components manufacturers. Other vehicle
manufacturers such as Chrysler were to follow. These, plus many imported
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Final inspection of machine components.

the performance of their brakes and made them easier to apply. Technical
agreements with Bendix were to continue for many years although PBR’s
modifications and adaptations improved the original designs. Passenger
vehicles that were fitted with PBR power brakes generally carried a sticker

on the back windscreen. The sticker was more than just an advertisement for
PBR, it was a warning to motorists that the vehicle ahead of them was capable

of stopping very quickly!

The VH24 power brake was all-aluminium and to manufacture it, PBR
installed an aluminium foundry. The expertise gained in the foundry proved
invaluable and the company was soon to become a leader in aluminium
design and application for brake and clutch products. Over the coming

45 years, PBR’s skills in aluminium fabrication would be one of its most
valuable assets and render it a recognised international leader in lightweight

brake technologies.
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INNOVATION THROUGH MOTOR RACING

PBR’s involvement in motor racing commenced in 1954. A Repco engineer,
Charlie Dean, and some of his colleagues had built a racing car called the
Maybach some years earlier. PBR’s people designed and built the total drum
brake system for the car when it was rebuilt for professional racing. Bought by
a colourful Melbourne racing driver, Stan Jones, the Maybach won the New
Zealand Grand Prix against strong international competition. Clearly,
Australian engineering and ingenuity could compete on the international
stage and both Repco and PBR saw motor racing as an excellent promotional
tool and a test bed for their innovative products. In the Maybach and other
cars, Stan Jones, with Repco and PBR sponsorship and technical support, was
to forge a successful motor racing career. Repco and PBR also supported other
local racing drivers such as Reg Hunt and Bib Stillwell during what was a
golden era for the sport in Australia.

PBR’s association with motor racing included sponsorship of the Templestowe
Hill Climb venue in Melbourne. This giant sign was subsequently moved
to a new track known as Rob Roy when Templestowe’s land was required

for housing.
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THE FABULOUS SIXTIES

The 1960s are often seen as a halcyon period for the Australian economy.
Despite a brief recession in 1961, the nation enjoyed full employment for
most of the decade. The spread of the suburbs that had started in the 1950s
continued on a wave of optimism and affluence. The nation’s industrial
engine was growing to accommodate the seemingly unstoppable tide of
consumer confidence and a minerals boom in the mid-1960s brought new
wealth from exports. In 1960, Ford commenced manufacturing the Falcon
and by 1962, GMH had produced one million Holdens.

It was in this era that Repco’s far-sighted recruitment and training programs
proved to be an invaluable investment. A cadet engineers program ensured
that the company was well stocked with bright young engineers, many of
whom rose through the ranks to take on senior management roles while others
were responsible for the exceptional product and process advances that kept

Repco and its subsidiaries at the forefront of manufacturing in Australia.

Design and development was a key feature of PBR’s activities.

The old drawing boards were replaced by computer technology in the 1980s.
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It was during this period that PBR began to look seriously at disc brakes. Its
first calipers were manufactured in 1965 at East Bentleigh under licence from
Dunlop in the United Kingdom. Just as they had with other products, PBR’s
imaginative and resourceful engineers adapted the calipers over the coming
years to meet the requirements of the local market. Just how significant the
caliper would be in the future development of the company was difficult to
foresee at that time.

By 1964, 10 years after the move to East Bentleigh, PBR’s payroll passed 1000
people for the first time. Along with the expansion of manufacturing
activities, the network of brake service stations continued to grow and a new
one was opened in nearby Caulfield to coincide with the tenth anniversary of
East Bentleigh. By this time, the company was supplying brake products to
GMH, BMC, Ford, Chrysler, Volkswagen, International Harvester and AMI
which was then building the Rambler range of vehicles in Australia. Some of
the local manufacturers also exported vehicles, mainly to the Asia-Pacific,
Middle East and Southern Africa regions and wherever their vehicles

appeared, PBR was able to establish a presence in the respective aftermarkets.

The first calipers manufactured by PBR were in 1965.
Here Vin Keane, Chief Experimental Engineer, tests an early disc brake

assembly on a dynamometer.
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By the late 1960s, PBR had grown into a group of businesses that had built
on its brake products expertise to manufacture a broad range of industrial
products such as compressed air systems, control valves, hydraulic hoses
and even power boat steering systems. Diversity was seen as a virtue,
largely because the company was not dependent on any one industry sector.
Meanwhile Repco had become a manufacturing and trading powerhouse.
Under the inspirational leadership of Sir Charles McGrath, Repco was a
darling of the Australian Stock Exchange and one of the nation’s few truly

international companies.

OIL SHOCKS AND INFLATION

If the 1950s and 60s were halcyon for Australians then the 1970s were to
provide a jarring contrast. For most of the decade, the domestic economy was
deeply stressed by the effects of inflation. Many overseas economies were also
impacted and national governments struggled desperately to bring things
under control. One of the key factors driving inflation from 1973 was oil
pricing. OPEC, the Organisation of Petroleum Exporting Countries, was

Managing Director of Repco, Tony Avery (left) with George Paton.
The display featuring a 1927 Chevrolet, was part of PBR’s

50th anniversary celebrations in 1977.
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technical licence agreements with Japanese brake manufacturers such as
Akebono and JKC. Akebono provided caliper licences while power booster
licences came from JKC. Both these companies, in turn, had licence
agreements with PBR’s old friend, Bendix, and this long-standing relationship
smoothed access to the Japanese companies.

At this time, PBR took an initiative that would set it on a course leading to
domestic and international success in the years ahead. That initiative was the
design and manufacture of the aluminium caliper. With its long and successful
track record in aluminium fabrication, PBR quickly gained the attention of
automotive manufacturers who saw aluminium calipers as an excellent means
of achieving weight reduction. Amongst the first to take up aluminium
calipers were General Motors Holden and Nissan. GMH fitted the calipers to
the 1976 Torana, its mid-sized vehicle while Nissan fitted them to its popular
small car, the 1977 Datsun 120 Y. Other contracts were soon won as the
qualities and benefits of the aluminium products were realised. PBR had
turned the problems of the 70s into opportunities and demonstrated its ability
to design and develop its own products and processes to meet the demands of
a rapidly changing environment. In the years to come, PBR’s expertise in
aluminium design and manufacture would set it apart from most of its

international competitors.

In 1980, George and Jack Paton both died. George was 84 and Jack was 80.
They had been out of the business that they started as a partnership for more
than 30 years and there were no descendants who had stayed at PBR to carry
the Paton name. George had stayed on as a non-executive director of Repco
until 1968 but he had little to do with the day-to-day activities of PBR.
George’s son, John, did join the company in the 1940s as a mechanical
engineer but he left in the early 1950s to pursue a farming career.

Nevertheless, the Patons had left a rich heritage for others to take forward.
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LOOKING BEYOND AUSTRALIAN SHORES

While Repco was struggling with its own problems, the entire manufacturing
sector in Australia began to change dramatically. From the early 1980s,
governments of the day realised that Australian industry could not remain
protected by high tariffs and quotas. The domestic market was small and it
offered limited opportunities for growth. For the Australian economy to
realise its potential, industry had to look beyond Australia’s shores. The
booming economies of Asia were seen as logical targets for Australian
exporters. Leading exporters, including PBR, had established a presence in
Asian markets over the previous decades and building on existing markets

and relationships was a logical move.

In 1984, the Minister for Industry, Senator John Button, introduced what
became known as the Button Car Plan - a long-range blue print for the
automotive industry. The plan centred on a phasing down of tariff protection
over a 20-year time frame. When introduced, the plan was highly
controversial but it was generally agreed that it heralded a new era for

the automotive industry.

PBR had long been an outward looking company. From the 1960s it had
established export markets and by the 80s its products could be found in some
50 countries. The PBR brand was internationally recognised and highly
regarded. However, its products were largely sold to the aftermarkets and
very little to the original equipment manufacturers. The newly acquired
Girlock had also been an active exporter and had made a major breakthrough
in the American market in 1981. In that year, Girlock announced that it had
won a contract to supply original equipment brake products to the Chevrolet
Division of General Motors. The vehicle to be fitted with Girlock brakes was
the 1983 Corvette, the quintessential high performance American sportscar.
Soon after the 1984 Corvette was on the market, Girlock had been acquired

by Repco and it became part of PBR. Combining the two organisations created
a formidable new team in the North American automotive market - a team

capable of establishing a presence in the original equipment market.
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Derek Hodgson, the ex-Girlock engineer
who established the Detroit engineering
centre in 1982.

As the 1980s unfolded, it became clear that there were two types of
manufacturers in Australia - those that could compete successfully on
international markets and those that could not. The latter group were living
on borrowed time, or were already in their death throes.

PBR recognised that being able to meet the needs of international markets
required new levels of innovation, manufacturing excellence, product quality,
logistics and service standards. Product innovation was, of itself, not enough
to meet the requirements of the fiercely competitive international marketplace.
Manufacturing processes were needed to ensure that PBR products met the
quality, price and delivery expectations of major customers. Over the coming
years, new processes and process technologies were introduced that gave PBR
the essential competitive edge. A Quality Department was established and the
company began to invest in new computer technologies. The groundwork
done during the 80s was to prepare the company well for the growth
opportunities that lay ahead.
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In the late 1980s and early 1990s, diversification was still seen as a virtue and
Pacific BBA saw itself as a diversified manufacturer. Even though most of the
revenue and profit came from BCIA, the company promoted its diversity on
the grounds that it had an industrial plastics business, Viscount, which was
acquired shortly before the float and small businesses in the fibreglass and fire
protection industries that had previously been acquired by BBA. Pacific BBA
was also soon to acquire construction products businesses as part of its

diversification plans.

By the beginning of the 1990s, the Australian economy was in deep recession
and many companies were struggling to stay in business. Fierce cost-cutting
resulted in many thousands of workers losing their jobs and unemployment
reached a staggering one million. BCIA was not immune from these difficult
times and it was forced to reduce staff at East Bentleigh by 600. The fledging
Pacific BBA reported a pre-tax operating profit of $2.7 million for the first half
of 1991 compared with a profit of $10.25 million for the first half of 1990.
Before the recession ended, there would be more than one million people
unemployed throughout Australia, an all-time record.

Despite the recession, Pacific BBA’s plans for the future were being
formulated. Shortly after the listing, Kraehe appointed BCIA’s Manufacturing
Director, John MacKenzie, as Managing Director of BCIA. MacKenzie,

who had joined BCIA in 1986, had extensive manufacturing and general
management experience in Australia, South-East Asia and the United States.
He saw BCIA as an international business and set about making the

vision a reality.

NEW PRODUCTS, NEW FRONTIERS

At the beginning of the 90s, most of PBR’s exports were still to international
aftermarkets despite the success of the Corvette business. But PBR’s eyes were
firmly fixed on the huge original equipment markets of North America and
Asia. Its products, particularly its lightweight calipers, were seen as
international leaders and had gained the attention of some of the world’s
largest automotive manufacturers. Kraehe and MacKenzie were ready to take

the next step towards the internationalisation of the company.
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The Banksia park brake.

North America and Asia. By any measure, the Banksia was an outstanding
success. The engineering team led by a former Girlock employee, Nui Wang,
had carried on the tradition of bold creativity that started with the Paton
brothers and had been passed on down the years. In 2001, Nui Wang, then

the company’s General Manager - Advanced Products & Technologies, was
awarded the prestigious Clunies Ross National Science and Technology Award
"as recognition of the influence he has had on the automotive industry and

a generation of engineers".

The PBR brand was so well known that, in 1993, the decision was taken to
revert to it for the company name. BCIA was retired and PBR Automotive
(and, subsequently PBR International), became the corporate name. In the
same year, PBR’s ownership was again in transition. The British-based BBA
PLC decided to sell its 58 % interest in Pacific BBA and the shares were quickly
snapped up mainly by Australian investors. As part of the divestment, Pacific
BBA was eventually to change its name so that the relationship with BBA
would be completely severed. A staff competition was held and the name

Pacifica Group Limited was chosen in 1997.
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The Sierra, a General Motors” light truck being tested at an Australian proving
ground in 1998. These light trucks and SUVs (sports utility vehicles)
became immensely popular in North America from the mid 1990s

providing PBR with a huge market.

Firebird and Ford Mustang. Despite this success, these models represented a
prestigious but relatively small market. The makers of these vehicles selected
PBR brake products because their lightness added to performance. But in
1994, PBR made the breakthrough that would take it into the mainstream of
the world’s largest automotive market where volumes were measured in their
millions. It announced that it had won long-term agreements to supply
calipers and Banksia park brakes for General Motors” high-volume passenger
vehicles and light trucks. Finally, the years of hard grind, building credibility
and networks were about to pay off.

At the time, PBR’s overseas sales were valued at $50 million per annum for
both original equipment and aftermarket. The new business was expected to
add $45 million a year at full volume and, in total, was valued at $200 million
over the coming four or five years. Further large orders were in the pipeline
and these were to be announced over the coming two or three years.
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Work on the plant at Knoxville commenced immediately and it was officially
opened in late 1998. Delphi was offered, and took, a 49% share in the
Knoxville plant in late 1997. Its completion coincided with a period of great
economic prosperity in North America and car and light truck sales were
soaring beyond all expectations. In 1999, the information technology and
telecommunications boom was reaching a crescendo and a record 17 million
new vehicles were registered in the United States. PBR’s new plant was placed
under immense pressure as demand was exploding. Concurrently, exports of
Banksia park brakes from Australia were at record levels and domestic

demand was also exceptionally strong.

Foundry workers at Knoxville, Tennessee

At the time that plans for Knoxville were announced, the PBR management
team had already determined that a second US plant would be required to
satisfy long-term demand. In early 1999, the company announced that a
second plant would be built and Columbia, South Carolina had been selected
as the site. The Columbia plant was to be different to the one at Knoxville.
Knoxville was a high-volume plant producing one product line - calipers.
Columbia would be smaller and would produce a diversity of products. It was
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To enter the Japanese market, any Australian manufacturer needs to take a
long-term view and ample patience. PBR’s approach to the world’s second
largest automotive manufacturing nation was unveiled in 1996 when the
company announced it had signed a licence agreement with Japan Brake and
Industrial Co Ltd (JBI). The agreement was to cover the manufacture under
licence of PBR’s Banksia park brake in Japan. By 1996, PBR had already
enjoyed a 15-year relationship with JBI and saw the agreement as a conduit

that would eventually yield positive results.

The Asian economic crisis of 1997 also caused plans for a new PBR plant in
Thailand to be put on hold. However, space was soon available at a newly
established joint-venture friction materials plant which Bendix Mintex and
Pacifica had built at Rayong. From this base, PBR was able to commence
operations in 1998 supplying brake systems to the Automotive Alliance
Thailand, a Ford/Mazda joint venture. The appointment of Busra Rungsa-
Nguanvong as General Manager of PBR Thailand created a small piece of
history - she was the first woman to be appointed head of a PBR business.
By the late 90s, it was clear that Thailand was fast becoming the new
automotive powerhouse of Asia. It had attracted major investments from most
of the global vehicle manufacturers and had positioned itself as the centre for

automotive manufacturing in the ASEAN region.

The economic recovery in most Asian markets was surprisingly fast and, by
late 1998, PBR was seeing signs of stronger demand and this was sustained in
1999. The heady days of the early to mid-90s were over and steady rather
than spectacular growth was to follow. By 2002 Japan remained in recession
but the world’s last great untapped market, China, was continuing to open
its economy and the automotive manufacturers were turning their attention

to its potential.
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The year 2000 heralded a significant shift in direction for PBR and its parent,
Pacifica. Recognising that the company’s future lay in its intellectual property
rather than traditional manufacturing, it announced in its 2000 Annual Report
that it would transform itself from a diversified manufacturing company into
an industrial technology company. It was clear that only one of Pacifica’s
businesses held world-class intellectual property and that was PBR. Therefore,
"industrial technology" soon became "automotive technology" and plans for
Pacifica to divest itself of its plastics and construction products businesses
were announced. At the same time, the company detailed how it would move
from traditional manufacturing to its new role. This included establishing
strategic alliances with other organisations including manufacturers, research
institutions and universities and increasing its own investment in research
and development. Manufacturing would still be undertaken, but the emphasis
would be on the disciplines where the company had a clear, competitive
advantage. Non-core activities would be outsourced or divested. It was a bold
strategy designed to secure the company’s place in the rapidly growing
international automotive industry.

Dr Yuejin Li working on new generation brake technologies in 2000.
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"Brake-by wire" takes shape in 2000 with
PBR engineers Mark Findlay (left), Nui Wang (centre)
and Alan Stevens (right). This was an early stage of the

development of the electric Banksia park brake.

The "By-wire" technologies received the imprimatur of the Victorian
Government in 2002 and it provided a grant of $4.73 million towards the cost
of establishing a centre of excellence to be known as the Research Centre of
Advanced By-wire Technologies (RABiT) at East Bentleigh. A consortium
comprising of Pacifica Group Technologies, the University of Melbourne’s
Department of Mechanical and Manufacturing Engineering, the Bishop
Technology Group and Swinburne University of Technology was established
to make the centre a reality. Yet another step had been taken towards the
vision of the automotive technology company.

Meanwhile, the search for strategic partnerships quickly yielded results. In
September 2001, PBR entered into an exclusive agreement for the supply of
aluminium calipers and Banksias in North America to the global industrial
giant, Robert Bosch. Bosch, a huge manufacturer and supplier of automotive
components, was an ideal ally for PBR as it offered access to new markets and
Bosch’s products were largely complementary to PBR’s. Bosch had acquired

the Bendix Corporation and, through this connection, already had a
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Pacifica's Managing Director, John MacKenzie (left) with the Victorian
Minister for Manufacturing Industry, Rob Hulls and the President of Toyota
Australia, Ken Asano (right) at the launch of the Toyota manufacturing cell

in 2002. Mr Hulls also officially inducted PBR into the Victorian

Manufacturing Hall of Fame earlier in the year.

A fierce commitment to quality improvement had resulted in PBR becoming
the world’s first brake manufacturer to achieve the international QS 9000
certification and this was followed by a series of further quality standard
achievements including ISO 90001 and ISO 14001. PBR’s achievements had
won it many accolades such as Platinum and Silver awards in the Ford Motor
Company’s Excellence Awards, the GM Worldwide Supplier of the Year, the
Victorian Manufacturing Hall of Fame, the TSA Silver Supplier Award from
Toyota and the Australian Exporter of the Year Award.

It had been a remarkable journey over the 75 years. No doubt George and
Jack would have been in awe of what they started.
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